
 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

TOWN OF PAONIA 

WORK SESSION 5:30PM 
TUESDAY, APRIL 09, 2019 

REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

6:30 PM 
 

 

Roll Call 

Approval of Agenda 

Announcements 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 

Consent Agenda 
1. Regular Minutes – March 26, 2019 

2. Curiel LLC dba Rio Bravo Liquor License Renewal 

3. WSCC – Annual River Festival  

Mayor’s Report 
4. Arbor Day 2019 Proclamation 

Staff Reports 
Town Administrators Report 

5. Clark Avenue Parking - Notice to Public of Potential Parking Regulation Changes 

6. RFP – Water Engineer for the Study of Adding Raw Water Storage to Lone Cabin Reservoir and/or 

Roeber Reservoir 

7. RFP – Water Engineer for Study of Water Treatment Capacity and Raw Water Availability 

8. RPF – Mapping of Water and Sewer System in format that can be added to County GIS 

Public Works Report 

Police Department Report 

Town Treasurer Report 

Disbursements 

Unfinished Business 
9. Tree Board Vacancy – Appointment 

10. Town Administrator Review – Goals and Objectives 

11. Single Use Plastic Bag Ban – DRAFT Ordinance - Discussion 

12. Lifting of Water State of Emergency 

New Business 
13. Friends of the Paonia Skatepark 

14. WSCC – Letter of Support – CORE-Act  

15. Annexation of County Road – Stahl Road and County road section of Grand Avenue to the bridge.  

16. Sewer Tap Purchase - 470 Stahl Road 

17. Minor Subdivision – Huntley Subdivision – Recommendation to Board of County Commissioners 

18. Minor Subdivision Approval – Rio Grande 

19. Town Clerk Public Records Policy - Discussion 

Committee Reports 
Finance & Personnel 

Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

Space to Create 

Tree Board 

Adjournment 
 

  



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

AS ADOPTED BY: 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-10 – Amended May 22, 2018 

 

I. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 

Section 1.  Schedule of Meetings.  Regular Board of Trustees meetings shall be held on the second and fourth Tuesdays of each 

month, except on legal holidays, or as re-scheduled or amended and posted on the agenda prior to the scheduled meeting. 

 

Section 2.  Officiating Officer.  The meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be conducted by the Mayor or, in the Mayor’s 

absence, the Mayor Pro-Tem.  The Town Clerk or a designee of the Board shall record the minutes of the meetings. 

 

Section 3.  Time of Meetings.  Regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall begin at 6:30 p.m. or as scheduled and posted on 

the agenda. Board Members shall be called to order by the Mayor.  The meetings shall open with the presiding officer leading 

the Board in the Pledge of Allegiance.  The Town Clerk shall then proceed to call the roll, note the absences and announce 

whether a quorum is present.  Regular Meetings are scheduled for three hours, and shall be adjourned at 9:30 p.m., unless a 

majority of the Board votes in the affirmative to extend the meeting, by a specific amount of time.  

 

Section 4. Schedule of Business.  If a quorum is present, the Board of Trustees shall proceed with the business before it, which 

shall be conducted in the following manner.  Note that all provided times are estimated:  

 

 (a) Roll Call - (5 minutes) 

 (b) Approval of Agenda - (5 minutes) 

 (c) Announcements (5 minutes) 

 (d) Recognition of Visitors and Guests (10 minutes) 

 (e) Consent Agenda including Approval of Prior Meeting Minutes (10 minutes) 

 (f) Mayor’s Report (10 minutes) 

 (g) Staff Reports: (15 minutes) 

  (1) Town Administrator’s Report 

  (2) Public Works Reports  

  (3) Police Report 

  (4) Treasurer Report 

      

 (h) Unfinished Business (45 minutes) 

 (i) New Business (45 minutes) 

 (j) Disbursements (15 minutes) 

 (k) Committee Reports (15 minutes) 

 (l) Adjournment 

 

  * This schedule of business is subject to change and amendment. 

  

Section 5. Priority and Order of Business. Questions relative to the priority of business and order shall be decided by the 

Mayor without debate, subject in all cases to an appeal to the Board of Trustees.  

 

Section 6.  Conduct of Board Members.   Town Board Members shall treat other Board Members and the public in a civil and 

polite manner and shall comply with the Standards of Conduct for Elected Officials of the Town.  Board Members shall 

address Town Staff and the Mayor by his/her title, other Board Members by the title of Trustee or the appropriate honorific 

(i.e.: Mr., Mrs. or Ms.), and members of the public by the appropriate honorific.  Subject to the Mayor’s discretion, Board 

Members shall be limited to speaking two times when debating an item on the agenda.  Making a motion, asking a question or 

making a suggestion are not counted as speaking in a debate.  

 

Section 7. Presentations to the Board.  Items on the agenda presented by individuals, businesses or other organizations shall be 

given up to 5 minutes to make a presentation.  On certain issues, presenters may be given more time, as determined by the 

Mayor and Town Staff.  After the presentation, Trustees shall be given the opportunity to ask questions. 

 

Section 8. Public Comment.  After discussion of an agenda item by the Board of Trustees has concluded, the Mayor shall open 

the floor for comment from members of the public, who shall be allowed the opportunity to comment or ask questions on the 

agenda item.  Each member of the public wishing to address the Town Board shall be recognized by the presiding officer 

before speaking.  Members of the public shall speak from the podium, stating their name, the address of their residence and 

any group they are representing prior to making comment or asking a question.  Comments shall be directed to the Mayor or 

presiding officer, not to an individual Trustee or Town employee.  Comments or questions should be confined to the agenda 



 
NOTE: POSSIBLE ACTION ON ALL AGENDA ITEMS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY NOTED AS DISCUSSION ONLY 

item or issue(s) under discussion.  The speaker should offer factual information and refrain from obscene language and 

personal attacks. 

 

Section 9.  Unacceptable Behavior. Disruptive behavior shall result in expulsion from the meeting.   

 

Section 10.  Posting of Rules of Procedure for Paonia Board of Trustees Meetings. These rules of procedure shall be provided 

in the Town Hall meeting room for each Board of Trustees meeting so that all attendees know how the meeting will be 

conducted. 

 

II. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Section 1. Use of Consent Agenda. The Mayor, working with Town Staff, shall place items on the Consent Agenda. By using a 

Consent Agenda, the Board has consented to the consideration of certain items as a group under one motion. Should a 

Consent Agenda be used at a meeting, an appropriate amount of discussion time will be allowed to review any item upon 

request.  

Section 2. General Guidelines. Items for consent are those which usually do not require discussion or explanation prior to 

action by the Board, are non-controversial and/or similar in content, or are those items which have already been discussed or 

explained and do not require further discussion or explanation. Such agenda items may include ministerial tasks such as, but 

not limited to, approval of previous meeting minutes, approval of staff reports, addressing routine correspondence, approval 

of liquor licenses renewals and approval or extension of other Town licenses. Minor changes in the minutes such as non-

material Scribner errors may be made without removing the minutes from the Consent Agenda.  Should any Trustee feel there 

is a material error in the minutes, they should request the minutes be removed from the Consent Agenda for Board discussion. 

Section 3. Removal of Item from Consent Agenda. One or more items may be removed from the Consent Agenda by a timely 

request of any Trustee. A request is timely if made prior to the vote on the Consent Agenda. The request does not require a 

second or a vote by the Board. An item removed from the Consent Agenda will then be discussed and acted on separately 

either immediately following the consideration of the Consent Agenda or placed later on the agenda, at the discretion of the 

Board.  

 

III.  EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Section 1.  An executive session may only be called at a regular or special Board meeting where official action may be taken 

by the Board, not at a work session of the Board.  To convene an executive session, the Board shall announce to the public in 

the open meeting the topic to be discussed in the executive session, including specific citation to the statute authorizing the 

Board to meet in an executive session and identifying the particular matter to be discussed “in as much detail as possible 

without compromising the purpose for which the executive session is authorized.” In the even the Board plans to discuss more 

than one of the authorized topics in the executive session, each should be announced, cited and described. Following the 

announcement of the intent to convene an executive session, a motion must then be made and seconded.  In order to go into 

executive session, there must be the affirmative vote of two thirds (2/3) of Members of the Board. 

 

Section 2.  During executive session, minutes or notes of the deliberations should not be taken. Since meeting minutes are 

subject to inspection under the Colorado Open Records Act, the keeping of minutes would defeat the private nature of 

executive session. In addition, the deliberations carried out during executive session should not be discussed outside of that 

session or with individuals not participating in the session.  The contexts of an executive session are to remain confidential 

unless a majority of the Trustees vote to disclose the contents of the executive session. 

 

Section 3.  Once the deliberations have taken place in executive session, the Board should reconvene in regular session to take 

any formal action decided upon during the executive session.  If you have questions regarding the wording of the motion or 

whether any other information should be disclosed on the record, it is essential for you to consult with the Town Attorney on 

these matters. 

 

 

IV. SUBJECT TO AMENDMENT 

 

Section 1. Deviations.  The Board may deviate from the procedures set forth in this Resolution, if, in its sole discretion, such 

deviation is necessary under the circumstances. 

Section 2.  Amendment.   The Board may amend these Rules of Procedures Policy from time to time. 

  



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 5, 2019 
 

 

Roll Call 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 26, 2019 
 

 

Town Administrator Review - Goals and Objectives 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 5, 2019 
 

 

Approval of Agenda 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 5, 2019 
 

 

Announcements 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 5, 2019 
 

 

Visitors & Guests 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 3, 2019 
 

 

Regular Minutes – March 26, 2019 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



 

  

MARCH 26, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 1 

 

Minutes 

Regular Town Board Meeting 

Town of Paonia, Colorado 

March 26, 2019 

  

 

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 

 

Roll Call 
PRESENT 

Mayor Charles Stewart 

Mayor Pro-Tem Chelsea Bookout 

Trustee Mary Bachran 

Trustee William Bear 

Trustee Karen Budinger 

Trustee Dave Knutson 

 

ABSENT 

Trustee Samira Hart 

 

Approval of Agenda 
 

 Motion made by Trustee Bachran, Seconded by Trustee Budinger to approve the agenda 

as presented Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, 

Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Announcements 
 

 None 

 

Recognition of Visitors & Guests 
 

 Karen Hinkel - Tree Board Member - Requested to be on the next agenda for Arbor Day 

Proclamation and provided information for the event.  

 

Wes Norris - representing Mountain Coal Company - reminded the Town of the 

agreement with Mountain Coal Company and 317 taps owned by the Company and 

suggested a moratorium on tap sales if unable to provide the taps. 

 

Christina Patterson - requested information regarding the development mentioned by a 

previous speaker.  

 

Thomas Markle - Does Mountain Coal Company pay for their stand-by taps? 

 

Consent Agenda 
 

 2/21/19 Special Meeting Minutes 



 

  

MARCH 26, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 2 

 

3/12/19 Regular Meeting Minutes 

 

NOTE: Trustee Knutson abstained from consent item Special Meeting Minutes, 2/21/19, 

stating he was not present for the meeting. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bachran, Seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout to approve the 

consent agenda. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, 

Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

Mayor’s Report 
 

 The Board received thank you letters from Paonia Senior Center and Hope West for 

continued support from the Town. 

 

Mayor Stewart introduced Evan Bolt - Intern with the Town of Paonia.  

Staff Reports 
Town Administrators Report 

 Opportunity Zone meeting in Delta attended by Evan Bolt. 

 Staff will be at after-action meeting Thursday with State entities who assisted 

during the water event.  

 Annual CDOT meeting is Tuesday at Delta County Courthouse. 

  

Public Works Report 

 Working on small water leaks today. 

 Continue filling potholes. 

 Changing master meters to radio reads. 

  

Police Department Report 

 Blotter included in the packet. 

 Provided information regarding the recovery of stolen goods. 

 Officer Vassel’s FTO (field training) going well, will be filling bike officer 

position over summer. 

 Training continues.  

  

Town Treasurer Report 

 Payroll and disbursements have been reviewed. 

 

Disbursements 
 

 Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Seconded by Trustee Bachran to approve 

disbursements as presented. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson 

 



 

  

MARCH 26, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 3 

 

Unfinished Business 

 

 Revised Preliminary Environmental Assessment for the North Fork Mancos Master 

Development Plan – Town Response Letter 

 

 The draft response letter from the Town Board was included in the packet.  

The item was opened for Board discussion and conversation. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bear, supported by Trustee Knutson amend the letter, striking a 

paragraph on page 33 stating the Paonia has worked for years - Town has moved away 

from extraction. 

 

Board discussion ensued regarding the paragraph.   

 

Public comment was open for discussion regarding the paragraph. 

 

Motion to amend brought to a vote. Voting Yea – Trustees Knutson and Bear – Voting 

Nay – Trustees Bookout, Budinger, Bachran. Motion to amend fails. 

 

Trustee Knutson requested consistency in measurement of water and terminology, noted 

a court case that may relate to the assessment, and the need for accuracy throughout the 

letter.  

 

Motion to amend by Trustee Knutson, supported by Trustee Bear to use same 

measurement for water throughout the document. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, 

Trustee Bachran, Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Motion by Trustee Knutson supported by Trustee Bear to include the sentence increased 

truck traffic on Highway 92 and 133 can cause hazards due to the narrowness of road 

and lack of shoulders on the side of the roads and as a result is strongly recommended a 

consultation be had with CDOT. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, 

Trustee Bear, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson. 

 

Motion by Trustee Knutson supported by Trustee Bachran to change the wording in 

second sentence to trucking that amount of water NEAR Paonia instead of THROUGH 

Paonia.  

 

Andrew Forkes-Gudmundson - added information regarding the compilation of a 

monetary figure included in the draft letter and the lack of any formal agreement for 

water with Delta County. Mr. Forkes-Gudmundson recommended adding a sentence 

requesting the BLM to ensure the water promised from the City of Delta.  

 

Motion to amend brought to vote. Voting Yea – Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout and Trustees 

Bachran, Budinger, Knutson. Voting Nay – Trustee Bear.  

  



 

  

MARCH 26, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 4 

 

Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Seconded by Trustee Bachran to approve the 

letter as amended and authorize Mayor Stewart to sign. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem 

Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson Voting Nay: Trustee Bear. 

 

 Personnel Handbook Sections 202 & 209 Amendment – Access to Personnel Files 

and Medical Information Privacy 

 

 Mayor Stewart provided information regarding the proposed amendments to the 

Personnel Handbook. Descriptions of suggested amendments were included in the packet. 

Minor grammatical corrections were noted.  

  

 Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout supported by Trustee Knutson to accept 

changes to section 202. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bear. 

 

Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout supported by Trustee Budinger to accept 

changes to section 209. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bear. 

 

Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout supported by Trustee Budinger to set effective 

date for March 26, 2019. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, 

Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bear. 

 

 Edesia Community Kitchen – Mediation 

 

 Mayor Stewart provided information regarding the mediation request made by the Board 

instructing the Town Administrator to meet with the parties regarding the outstanding 

issues that were outside the requirements placed by the Board at the approval hearing.  

 

Administrator Knight provided an update from the two meetings that have occurred to 

date.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding allowing parking only on one-side of the road.  

  

 Town Administrator Evaluation/Review 

 

 Mayor Stewart provided an overview of the Administrator review process and the need to 

set goals and objectives for the Administrator. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson supported by Trustee Bachran to set a work session to 

set Administrator goals & objectives. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee 

Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bear. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Knutson supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout to set work 

session for 5:30pm before the next regular meeting Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem 

Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bear. 



 

  

MARCH 26, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 5 

 

New Business 
 

 Sustainable North Fork Valley – Single Use Plastic Bag Ban 

 

 Paonia Experiential Learning Academy (PELA) students read letters to the Board asking 

the Town to ban single use plastic bags. 

 

Other community ordinances were presented for examples, and a slideshow presentation 

was provided. 

  

Discussion ensued regarding types of bags offered, the phase-in process, and availability 

of paper bags.   

  

 Citizen Request – Presentation of Plastic Bag Reduction Basics 

 

 Sid Lewis was present and provided an ordinance from Kirkland Washington, stating he 

was impressed at how the ordinance dealt with specifics right from the start, including 

implementation and monitoring.  

 

Mr. Lewis read a statement to the Board. 

  

Motion made by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout supported by Trustee Budinger to refer to the 

Town Attorney to draft and provide an ordinance for single-use plastic bag ban. Voting 

Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, 

Trustee Bear. 

 

 The Learning Council & Colorado Farm & Food Alliance - Large Park Special 

Event - Community Fair 

 

 Lisa DeLaney was present regarding TLC event. This is the 5th annual event, formerly 

known as the Solar Fair held at Solar Energy International. Ms. DeLaney requested the 

time be extended from 7pm to 8pm.  

  

An overview of scheduled events, workshops and participants were provided.  

 

Discussion ensued regarding alcohol containment and clean-up. 

 

Motion made by Trustee Bear supported by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout to approve the 

special event packet, including the boundaries as defined by Chief Ferguson.  Voting 

Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, 

Trustee Bear. 

  

  

 

 



 

  

MARCH 26, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 6 

 

 Phil Wassell - Paonia Experiential Academy – Town Park Mural Follow-up 

 

 The PELA students provided information regarding the painting proposal for the Town 

Park pavilion wall and the process used to design the painting. 

 

Discussion ensued regarding funding the project. 

 

Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout supported by Trustee Bear to approve the proposed 

mural. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee Budinger, 

Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bear. 

 

Motion by Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout supported by Trustee Bachran to approve the 

proposed mural budget, to be paid by Town, up to $270.00. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bachran supported by Trustee Budinger to amend the proposed mural 

budget, to be paid by Town, up to $300.00. 

 

Motion to amend brought to vote. Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee 

Bachran, Trustee Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bear. 

 

 Mountain Harvest Creative – 2018 Financial Impact Report 

 

 Tom Backus - President of the MHC Board of Directors, introduced Josh Berman, 

festival director, who presented the 2018 financial impact report for the Mountain 

Harvest Festival.   

  

 Tree Board Vacancy – Letters of Interest Deadline 

 A letter of interest deadline needs to be set for the vacant tree board member seat. 

 

Motion by Trustee Bachran supported by Trustee Knutson to set the deadline for April 

3rd, 2019 at 4:30pm.  Voting Yea: Mayor Pro-Tem Bookout, Trustee Bachran, Trustee 

Budinger, Trustee Knutson, Trustee Bear. 

  

Committee Reports 
 Finance & Personnel 

 Nothing additional to report. 

 

 Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

 Met with Travis and Corinne to discuss wide range of issues including: 

 The need to develop a tracking spreadsheet to track flows, consumption and loss. 

 Upcoming tree removal RFP 

 Pressure analysis RFP 

 Electronic meter installation 

 Teen center roof RFP 

  



 

  

MARCH 26, 2019 REGULAR TOWN BOARD MEETING MINUTES 7 

 

 Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

 Working on facilitation plan for contractor meeting listening session on April 16th. 

  

 Space to Create 

 Gathering data for a public presentation. 

 

 Tree Board 

 Nothing additional to report.  

 

Adjournment 
 9:10pm 

  

 

 

_______________________________  ______________________________ 

J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk                          Charles Stewart, Mayor  



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 2, 2019 
 

 

Curiel LLC dba Rio Bravo Liquor License Renewal 

Summary:   

Standard annual license renewal. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 









AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 2, 2019 
 

 

WSCC – Annual River Festival  

Summary:   

The Western Slope Conservation Center requests permission to hold the 19
th

 Annual River 

Festival at the Paonia River Park June 1, 2019. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 





















AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 5, 2019 
 

 

Mayor’s Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 2, 2019 
 

 

Arbor Day 2019 Proclamation 

Summary:   

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



PROCLAMATION 
 

WHEREAS, the legislature of the State of Colorado has adopted an Act designating Arbor 
Day; and 
 
WHEREAS, this holiday, called Arbor Day is now observed throughout the nation and the 
world; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the purpose of the designation of this day to encourage the planting of 
shade and forest trees, to encourage the harvesting of our forest crops by approved 
conservation methods, and to encourage the protection of our forests from the scourge of 
devastating fires, insects, and diseases that destroy the beauty and usefulness of our 
woodlands as well as their wildlife; and 
 
WHEREAS, trees in our town increase property values, enhance the economic vitality of 
business areas and beautify our community; and 
 
WHEREAS, through the cooperation of all residents of Paonia in shade and forest tree 
planting and proper conservation practices in harvesting timber, we can pass on an enduring 
heritage of a vital natural resource to succeeding generations;  
 
WHEREAS, Paonia has been recognized as a Tree City USA by the National Arbor Day 
Foundation and desires to continue supporting tree-planting efforts,  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Charles Stewart, Mayor of the Town of Paonia, hereby proclaim 
April 26, 2019, as 
 

ARBOR DAY 
 

In the community of Paonia, and urge all citizens to celebrate Arbor Day and to support 
efforts to protect trees and woodlands, and 
 
FURTHER, I urge everyone able to do so, to observe this day by the planting of one or 
more trees and by participating in one or more programs that the sponsors of Arbor Day 
may provide, including the planting of a tree in Lee’s Park 
. 

GIVEN, under my hand and seal of the Town of Paonia, this 9th day of 
April in the year of our Lord, Two Thousand and nineteen. 

 
 
          

Charles Stewart, Mayor  
Attest: 
     
J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 5, 2019 
 

 

Administrator’s Report 

Summary:   

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 2, 2019 
 

 

Clark Avenue Parking 

Summary:   

Discussion and Staff direction regarding Clark Avenue on-street parking. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 3, 2019 
 

 

RFP – Water Engineer for the Study of Adding Raw Water Storage to 

Lone Cabin Reservoir and/or Roeber Reservoir 

Summary:   

EnterTextHere 

 

Notes: 

EnterTextHere 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 3, 2019 
 

 

RFP – Water Engineer for Study of Water Treatment Capacity and Raw 

Water Availability 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 3, 2019 
 

 

RPF – Mapping of Water and Sewer System in format that can be added 

to County GIS 

Summary:   

EnterTextHere 

 

Notes: 

EnterTextHere 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 5, 2019 
 

 

Public Works Report 

Summary:   

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 5, 2019 
 

 

Police Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



rplwlitr.x1

Paonia Police Department
Law Incident Table, by Date and Time

Date Occurred:   03/15/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
00:09:28 DOMESTIC PPD PPD CAA
03:58:02 AGENCY ASSIST PPD DIST3
16:13:46 Disturbance PPD PPD VW

16:52:03 911/hangup

Address
2ND ST, Paonia, CO
MATHEWS LN, Paonia, CO
MAIN AVE; MAPLE LEAF APARTMENTS, 
Paonia, CO
DORRIS AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

17:21:42 LOST/FOUND PROP PPD PPD
19:54:05 CIVIL PROBLEM

LAMBORN AVE, Paonia, CO
NIAGARA AVE; ROCKY MOUNTAIN 
INN MOTEL, Paonia, CO

PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 6

Date Occurred:   03/16/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
16:06:17 Traffic Stop PPD DIST3 CIT
16:42:41 Medical/transfe

Address
50 Block of Samuel Wade RD., Paonia, 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

17:44:19 ANIMAL CONTROL PPD VW
19:08:57 FRAUD

PAONIA TOWN PARK, Paonia, 
PAONIA AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD INA

Total Incidents for this Date: 4

Date Occurred:   03/17/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
17:11:45 AGENCY ASSIST PPD PPD
20:15:50 DUI

Address
VISTA DR; 20, Paonia, CO 
200 GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CAA

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   03/18/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
14:57:43 Traffic Stop 50 SAMUEL WADE RD, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3 CIT
Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   03/19/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:23:42 VIN INSPECTION

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   03/20/19



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 2 of 4

rplwlitr.x1

Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
12:29:42 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
18:59:08 CIVIL PROBLEM

Address
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO 
2ND ST, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   03/21/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
16:29:00 VIN INSPECTION PPD DIST3
18:09:28 Traffic Stop

Address
BURGESS LN, Paonia, CO 
300 Block of 3RD Street, Paonia, PPD PPD CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   03/22/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
08:39:04 SUSPICIOUS PPD PPD
11:30:09 BURGLARY PPD PPD INA
13:00:00 SEX OFFENSE

Address
200 GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO 
DELTA AVE, Paonia, CO 
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD UNF

16:22:35 ANIMAL CONTROL PPD DIST3
16:44:01 Code Enforce

BLACK BRIDGE RD, Paonia, CO 
ORCHARD AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD WW

17:46:24 Code Enforce PPD PPD VW
18:16:04 Child Abuse/neg PPD PPD UNF
22:24:04 Traffic Stop

200 BLOCK OF GRAND AVENUE, Paonia, 
ONARGA AVE, Paonia, CO
500 BLOCK OF 2ND STREET, Paonia, CO PPD PPD WW

Total Incidents for this Date: 8

Date Occurred:   03/23/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:22:12 CITIZEN ASSIST

Address
GRAND AVE ;in back facing alley, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   03/24/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
15:13:00 SUSPICIOUS PPD PPD
21:12:30 MARIJUANA

Address
3RD ST, Paonia, CO
200 GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   03/25/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
12:49:02 ALARM

Address
GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   03/26/19



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 3 of 4

rplwlitr.x1

Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
18:19:11 Certified Vin PPD DIST3
20:00:22 Certified Vin

Address
GERMAN CREEK LN, Paonia, CO 
CEDAR LN, Paonia, CO PPD DIST3

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   03/27/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
16:39:16 Traffic Stop GRAND AVENUE @ 2ND STREET, Paonia,

CO
PPD PPD CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Date Occurred:   03/28/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
10:00:56 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
15:09:53 AGENCY ASSIST PPD DIST3
16:05:33 911 PPD PPD
16:39:43 Code Enforce PPD PPD
17:37:02 CIVIL PROBLEM PPD PPD WW
18:17:09 Parking Problem PPD PPD
21:24:40 Traffic Stop PPD PPD CIT
22:19:21 Traffic Stop

Address
GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO 
GERMAN CREEK DR, Paonia, CO 
BOX ELDER AVE, Paonia, CO
2ND ST, Paonia, CO
2ND ST, Paonia, CO
CLARK AVE, Paonia, CO
200 BLOCK OF 2ND STREET, Paonia, CO 
3RD STREET @ GRAND AVENUE, Paonia, 
CO

PPD PPD CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 8

Date Occurred:   03/29/19
Time Nature Address Agency Loctn Dsp
16:21:10 VIN INSPECTION PPD PPD
18:54:01 ALARM PPD PPD
20:01:58 Traffic Stop

GRAND AVE; PPD, Paonia, CO PAONIA 
PUBLIC LIBRARY, Paonia, CO 
ONARGA AVENUE @ 2ND STREET, Paonia, 
CO

PPD DIST3 CIT

20:26:44 Traffic Stop 700 BLOCK OF 2ND STREET, Paonia, CO PPD PPD VW
21:42:25 Traffic Stop 300 BLOCK OF GRAND AVENUE, Paonia, COPPD PPD CIT
22:13:14 DUI 300 BLOCK OF GRAND AVE, Paonia, CO PPD PPD CAA
Total Incidents for this Date: 6

Date Occurred:   03/30/19
Time Nature Agency Loctn Dsp
22:26:13 Ped Contact PPD PPD VW
22:51:44 Traffic Stop

Address
PAN AMERICA, Paonia, CO
NIAGARA AVE; ROCKY MOUNTAIN 
INN MOTEL, Paonia, CO

PPD PPD CIT

Total Incidents for this Date: 2

Date Occurred:   03/31/19



Law Incident Table, by Date and Time Page 4 of 4

Report Includes:
All dates between `00:00:01 03/15/19` and `00:00:01 04/01/19`, All agencies matching `PPD`, All disposition's, All natures,
All location codes, All cities

rplwlitr.x1

Time Nature
15:02:21 Medical/transfe

Address
MAIN AVE, Paonia, CO

Agency Loctn Dsp 
PPD PPD 

Total Incidents for this Date: 1

Total reported: 50

VW=6
WW=2
CIT=10
CAA=3
UNF=2
INA=2



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 5, 2019 
 

 

Treasurer’s Report 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 5, 2019 
 

 

Disbursements 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 









































AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 2, 2019 
 

 

Tree Board Vacancy – Appointment 

Summary:   

The Tree Board has a vacancy pending with the resignation of Tamie Meck.  The deadline for 

letters of interest was set for April 3, 2019. Two letters of interest were received. (NOTE: I 

was informed by a tree board member that Mr. Wain no longer wishes to hold a seat. The 

request was made for a formal removal as a candidate but to date, one was not received).  

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 











AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 2, 2019 
 

 

Town Administrator Review – Goals and Objectives 

Summary:   

Follow-up from Administrator review process and work session held prior to regular meeting. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 2, 2019 
 

 

Ordinance 2019-TBD Single Use Plastic Bag Ban 

Summary:   

First read of Draft  ordinance regarding Single Use Plastic Bag Ban. 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



 

DRAFT Ordinance 2019-TBD Plastic Bag Ban Page 1 of 4  

ORDINANCE NO. 2019 - TBD 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO,  

PROHIBITING THE USE OF CERTAIN PLASTIC BAGS 

 

RECITALS 

 
 A. WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia (the “Town”) is a statutory Town; and 

 

  B. WHEREAS, the Town, pursuant to its police powers has a duty to protect the health, safety 

and welfare of its citizens; and   

 

 C. WHEREAS, the Town supports efforts to reduce the amount of land-fill waste; and  

 

 D. WHEREAS, the use of single-use disposable plastics such as bags, straws, coffee stirrers, 

soda and water bottles have severe negative impacts on the environment, both on a local and global 

scale, including contributing to greenhouse gas emissions, litter, atmospheric acidification, water 

consumption and solid waste generalization, and harming wildlife; and   

 

 E. WHEREAS, the Town Board of Trustees desires to prohibit the use of certain plastic bags, 

which is necessary to address the environmental problems associated with disposable bags.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO, THAT: 

 

SECTION 1.  RECITALS.  

 

The foregoing recitals are hereby affirmed and incorporated herein by this reference as findings 

of the Town of Paonia.    

 

SECTION 2.  AMENDMENT TO THE TOWN CODE.   

 

The following sections shall be added creating Article 10, Section 10-10-20.  Plastic Bag 

Restrictions of the Town of Paonia Municipal Code:  

 

SECTION 10-10-20 DEFINITIONS. 

 

The following terms used in this Section have the following meanings unless the context clearly 

indicates otherwise: 

 

(A) Business means any commercial enterprise or establishment, including 

sole proprietorships, joint ventures, partnerships, corporations or any other legal entity 

whether for profit or not for profit and including all employees of the Business and any 

independent contractors associated with the Business.  

 

  Business does not include vendors at temporary or special events.  

 



 

DRAFT Ordinance 2019-TBD Plastic Bag Ban Page 2 of 4  

(B) Disposable Plastic Bag means a bag made from either non-compostable 

plastic or compostable plastic provided by a Business to a customer at a point of sale for 

the purpose of transporting goods.   

 

Disposable Plastic Bag does not include:    

 

(1) Bags used by consumers inside stores to: 

a.  package bulk items such as fruit, vegetables, nuts, grains, 

candy or small hardware items; 

 

b. Contain or wrap frozen foods, meat or fish;  

 

c. Contain or wrap flowers, potted plants or other items where 

dampness may be a problem; or 

 

d. Contain unwrapped prepared foods or bakery goods.  

 

(2) A non-handled bag 

used to protect a purchased item from damaging 

or contaminating other purchased items when 

placed in a recyclable paper bag or reusable bag.  

(3) Bags provided by 

pharmacists to contain prescription drugs.  

 

(4) Newspaper bags, 

door-hanger bags, laundry/dry cleaning bags, or 

bags sold in packages containing multiple bags 

for uses such as food storage, garbage, pet waste 

or yard waste. 

 

(C) Non-permitted Paper Bag means a paper bag provided by a Business to a 

customer at the point of sale for the purpose of transporting goods, which does not meet 

the standards of a "Permitted Paper Bag." 
 

(D)  Permitted Paper Bag means a paper bag provided by a Business to a 

customer at the point of sale for the purpose of transporting goods, which meets all of 

the following requirements: 

 

(1) The bag is manufactured from 40% recycled 

content; and 

 

(2) The bag is 100% recyclable. 

 

(E) Reusable Carryout Bag means a bag that: 

 



 

DRAFT Ordinance 2019-TBD Plastic Bag Ban Page 3 of 4  

(1) is designed and manufactured to withstand 

repeated uses over a period of time; 

(2) is made from a material that can be cleaned 

and disinfected regularly;  

(3) is at least two and one-fourth (2.25) mils 

thick, if made from plastic; and  

(4) has the capability of carrying a minimum of 

eighteen (18) pounds. 

 

SECTION 10-10-30 TOWN-WIDE PROHIBITION ON DISPOSABLE PLASTIC BAGS 

 

Effective November 1, 2019, Disposable Plastic Bags and Non-permitted Paper Bags shall not be 

sold or distributed, retail or wholesale, within Town limits by any Business.  Businesses, citizens 

of the Town, and consumers within the Town are encouraged to use Reusable Carryout Bags or 

Permitted Paper Bags.   

 

SECTION 10-10-40 VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES 

 

(A) Any Person and/or Business, upon conviction of 

any violation of any provision of this Section shall be cited and 

subject to the following penalties:   

 

(1)  _________________  

 

(B)  No more than one (1) penalty shall be imposed 

upon a Person and/or Business within any seven (7) day period. 

 

SECTION 3.  SINGLE-USE PLASTICS 

 

With the adoption of this Ordinance prohibiting the use of Disposable Plastic Bags and Non-

permitted Paper Bags, the Town further encourages all of its citizens to limit or curtail their use 

of single-use plastics or disposable plastics such as straws, coffee stirrers, soda bottles, water 

bottles, cups, utensils and food packaging.   

 

SECTION 4.  ORDINANCE EFFECT 

 

All Ordinances of the Town, or parts thereof, inconsistent or in conflict with this Ordinance are 

hereby repealed, replaced and superseded to the extent only of such inconsistency or conflict.   

 

SECTION 5.  SEVERABILITY 

 

The Provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and the invalidity of any section, phrase, clause 

or portion of this Ordinance as determined by a court of competent jurisdiction shall not affect 

the validity or effectiveness of the remainder of this Ordinance.  

 

SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE 



 

DRAFT Ordinance 2019-TBD Plastic Bag Ban Page 4 of 4  

 

This Ordinance shall take effect thirty days after publication.     

 

INTRODUCED, READ AND REFERRED to public hearing before the Board of Trustees 

for the Town of Paonia, Colorado, on the ___ day of ____________, 2019. 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
 

      By:  

______________________________ 

CHARLES STEWART, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

J. CORINNE FERGUSON, Town Clerk 

 

HEARD AND FINALLY ADOPTED by the Town of Paonia Board of Trustees for the 

Town of Paonia, Colorado, on the ___ day of ____________, 2019. 

 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA 
 

      By:________________________________ 

       CHARLES STEWART, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

J. CORINNE FERGUSON, Town Clerk 

 
 

 

 
 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 3, 2019 
 

 

Lifting of Water State of Emergency 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-08 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TOWN OF PAONIA, 

COLORADO, RESCINDING A LOCAL EMERGENCY 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia is a Statutory Town located Delta County, Colorado; and  

 

WHEREAS, in February of 2019, the Town of Paonia experienced a major waterline break in its 

water system; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia has located and repaired the break; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Town of Paonia Water System is fully functioning and running; and 

 

WHEREAS, on or about February 18, 2019, Charles Stewart as Mayor of the Town of Paonia 

declared a local emergency for the Town  in accordance with C.R.S. § 24-32-2109;  and 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with C.R.S. § 24-32-2109, the local emergency declared by the 

Mayor was ratified by the Board of Trustees on February 21, 2019; and,  

 

WHEREAS, with the Town of Paonia’s water system fully functioning and the Town is now 

providing regular water service, it is appropriate to rescind the local emergency.  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES FOR THE 

TOWN OF PAONIA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The Board of Trustees hereby rescinds the Mayor’s declaration of a local emergency 

declared February 18, 2019. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of April 2019, by the Board of Trustees for the 

Town of Paonia at a duly called special meeting of the Board of Trustees. 

 

 

TOWN OF PAONIA, COLORADO 

 

By: _____________________________  

 Charles Stewart, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By:       

  J. Corinne Ferguson, Town Clerk 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

March 13, 2019 
 

 

Friends of the Paonia Skatepark 

Summary:   

Jay Canode – on behalf of the Friends of the Paonia Skatepark requests Board approval and 

sponsorship for grant applications for infrastructure improvements at the skatepark, located at 

Paonia Town Park.  

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 2, 2019 
 

 

WSCC – Letter of Support – CORE-Act  

Summary:   

The Western Slope Conservation Center requests a Board of Trustees letter of support for the 

Colorado Outdoor Recreation & Economy Act (CORE Act).  

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 





1 
 

 
 
 
Colorado U.S. Senator Michael Bennet and U.S. Congressman Joe Neguse’s Colorado Outdoor 
Recreation & Economy (CORE) Act protects approximately 400,000 acres of public land in 
Colorado, establishing new wilderness areas and safeguarding existing outdoor recreation 
opportunities to boost the economy for future generations.  
 
Colorado counties, in close coordination with businesses, recreation groups, sportsmen, and 
conservationists, helped write each element of the CORE Act over the last decade.  
 
Of the land protected, about 73,000 acres are new wilderness areas, and nearly 80,000 acres are 
new recreation and conservation management areas that preserve existing outdoor uses, such as 
hiking and mountain biking. The bill also includes a first-of-its-kind National Historic Landscape 
to honor Colorado’s military legacy and prohibits new oil and gas development in areas 
important to ranchers and sportsmen.  
 
The CORE Act unites and improves four previously introduced bills:  
 

1. Continental Divide Recreation, Wilderness, and Camp Hale Legacy Act 
 

2. San Juan Mountains Wilderness Act  
 

3. Thompson Divide Withdrawal and Protection Act  
 

4. Curecanti National Recreation Area Boundary Establishment Act 
 
  



2 
 

Continental Divide Recreation, Wilderness, and Camp Hale Legacy Act 
 
The Continental Divide Recreation, Wilderness, and Camp Hale Legacy Act establishes permanent 
protections for nearly 100,000 acres of wilderness, recreation, and conservation areas in the 
White River National Forest along Colorado’s Continental Divide. It also designates the first-
ever National Historic Landscape around Camp Hale to preserve and promote the 10th 
Mountain Division’s storied legacy. In crafting the bill, Senator Bennet and then-Congressman 
Jared Polis collaborated with community leaders, veterans, and businesses in Eagle, Summit, and 
Grand Counties. 
 

• Wilderness Areas: The bill creates three new wilderness areas in the Tenmile Range, 
Hoosier Ridge, and Williams Fork Mountains, totaling 21,033 acres. It also adds 20,196 
acres to three existing wilderness areas by expanding Eagles Nest, Ptarmigan Peak, and 
Holy Cross wilderness areas. Input and support from community leaders in Eagle and 
Summit Counties led to these designations. 
 

• Camp Hale National Historic Landscape: The bill designates 28,728 acres surrounding 
Camp Hale as the first-ever National Historic Landscape. This unprecedented designation 
speaks to the storied legacy of the Army’s 10th Mountain Division in Colorado and around 
the world. The 10th Mountain Division that trained at Camp Hale led our nation to victory 
in World War II, then went on to create the outdoor industry as we know it today. The 
National Historic Landscape designation would ensure  Camp Hale’s historic preservation, 
secure existing recreational opportunities, and protect natural resources. 
 

• Wildlife: The bill creates two new wildlife conservation areas totaling 11,668 acres. The 
Porcupine Gulch Wildlife Conservation Area would protect Colorado’s only migration 
corridor over Interstate 70 for elk, bear, mule deer, and other wildlife. The Williams Fork 
Wildlife Conservation Area would enhance wildlife habitat for the Greater Sage-grouse 
and other species.  
 

• Recreation: The bill creates a recreation management area in the Tenmile Range totaling 
16,966 acres. This would protect access to world-class outdoor recreation, such as 
mountain biking, hiking, and hunting. 
 

• Other Land Management: The bill addresses a number of management issues in specific 
areas along the Continental Divide. It adjusts wilderness boundaries around the Trail 
River Ranch in Rocky Mountain National Park to ensure ongoing access to the property 
for youth and community education programs. It authorizes special use of the Bolts Ditch 
headgate in the Holy Cross Wilderness Area to ensure the town of Minturn, Colorado, can 
use its existing water rights to fill Bolts Lake. Lastly, it allows the Forest Service to acquire 
“the Wedge”—several parcels of land in Grand County—to protect wildlife habitat and the 
landscape near Rocky Mountain National Park. 

 
 



3 
 

San Juan Mountains Wilderness Act 
 
The San Juan Mountains Wilderness Act provides permanent protections for nearly 61,000 acres 
of land located in the heart of the San Juan Mountains in Southwest Colorado. It designates some 
of the state’s most iconic peaks as wilderness, including two fourteeners: Mount Sneffels and 
Wilson Peak. The bill is the result of more than 10 years of collaboration among local leaders, 
businesses, and ranchers in San Miguel, San Juan, and Ouray Counties. It has passed out of both 
Senate and House committees with bipartisan support. 
 

• Wilderness: The bill designates 31,725 acres of new wilderness areas near Telluride, 
Norwood, Ouray, and Ridgway. Approximately 23,000 acres are additions to the existing 
Lizard Head and Mount Sneffels Wilderness Areas. The bill also designates 8,884 acres 
surrounding McKenna Peak, an existing Wilderness Study Area, as a new wilderness area 
in San Miguel County. 
 

• Special Management: The bill designates 21,663 acres as the Sheep Mountain Special 
Management Area between the towns of Ophir and Silverton, which includes Hope Lake 
and Ice Lakes Basin. The bill also creates the 792-acre Liberty Bell East Special 
Management Area near Telluride. 
 

• Mineral Withdrawal: The bill protects 6,590 areas of mineral withdrawal outside of 
Norwood at Naturita Canyon, prohibiting future mineral development in the canyon. 

 
 
Thompson Divide Withdrawal and Protection Act 
 
The Thompson Divide Withdrawal and Protection Act protects the Thompson Divide—one of 
Colorado’s most treasured landscapes—by withdrawing approximately 200,000 acres from 
future oil and gas development, while preserving existing private property rights for leaseholders 
and landowners. It also creates a program to lease excess methane from nearby coal mines, 
supporting the local economy and addressing climate change. Since joining the Senate, Senator 
Bennet has worked with ranchers, sportsmen, and elected officials to ensure the bill reflects the 
wishes of Gunnison, Pitkin, and Garfield Counties and local energy companies. 
 

• Mineral Withdrawal: The bill permanently withdraws around 200,000 acres in the 
Thompson Divide near Carbondale and Glenwood Springs from future oil and gas 
development, while preserving existing private property rights for leaseholders and 
landowners.   
 

• Methane Leasing: Based on a request from Gunnison County, Delta County, and natural 
gas producers, the bill creates a program to lease and generate energy from excess 
methane in existing or abandoned coal mines in the North Fork Valley—supporting the 
local economy and addressing climate change. 

 



4 
 

Curecanti National Recreation Area Boundary Establishment Act 
 
The Curecanti National Recreation Area (NRA) Boundary Establishment Act formally establishes the 
boundary for the Curecanti NRA. Although created in 1965, the boundary has never been 
designated by Congress, limiting the ability of the National Park Service to effectively manage 
the area. The bill improves coordination among land management agencies and ensures the 
Bureau of Reclamation upholds its commitment to expand public fishing access in the basin. Since 
2011, Senator Bennet has worked closely with counties, federal agencies, landowners, and 
sportsmen to craft the bill.  
 
 

• Boundary Establishment: The bill formally establishes the boundary of the Curecanti 
National Recreation Area, currently one of only a handful of NPS units without a formal 
designation by Congress.  
 

• Land Management: The bill improves the efficiency of public land management in the area 
by initiating a series of administrative jurisdiction changes—a step supported by all of the 
relevant land management agencies that will save taxpayer dollars. It also ensures Bureau 
of Reclamation jurisdiction over the three dams in the area that play an important role in 
the Colorado River. Lastly, the bill allows nearby landowners to voluntarily receive 
assistance from the NPS to conserve natural resources on their property.  
 

• Fishing Access: The bill ensures that the Bureau of Reclamation upholds its commitment 
to expand public fishing access in the basin, which was lost when the Aspinall Unit was 
created.  



 
April 4, 2019 

Town of Paonia Board of Trustees  
P.O. Box 460  
214 Grand Avenue  
Paonia, CO 81428  
 
RE: Letter of Support for CORE Act 
 
Dear Trustees for the Town of Paonia, 
 
The Western Slope Conservation Center is a 600+ member organization that builds an active 
and aware community to protect and enhance the lands, air, water, and wildlife of the Lower 
Gunnison Watershed. The Conservation Center has a 40+ year history of working to ensure our 
public lands are well-managed with the highest level of protection they deserve. Additionally, we 
are currently a participant of the joint Delta-Gunnison County Coal Mine Methane Working 
Group, whose mission is to the support of the coal mines and surrounding communities in the 
North Fork Valley through the development of a comprehensive strategy for education, capture, 
exploration of mitigation, and economic utilization of coal mine methane. We respectfully 
request that the Town of Paonia submit a letter of support for the Colorado Recreation and 
Economy (CORE) Act to Senator’s Bennet and Gardner and Representatives Tipton and 
Neguse 
 
In January 2019, Senator Bennet and Representative Neguse introduced the Colorado Outdoor 
Recreation and Economy Act, a visionary effort to protect Colorado’s wild places and outdoor 
recreation economy. The CORE Act combines and improves four previously introduced bills: the 
Thompson Divide Withdrawal and Protection Act, the Curecanti National Recreation Area 
Boundary Establishment Act, the San Juan Mountains Wilderness Act, and the Continental 
Divide Recreation, Wilderness and Camp Hale Legacy Act. In total, this bill will protect 
approximately 400,000 acres of iconic Colorado public lands for future generations. 
 
The Thompson Divide and Curecanti NRA portions of this bill are of particular benefit to the 
Town of Paonia. The Thompson Divide Act includes fluid mineral withdrawal of ~200,000 acres 
of public lands in the Thompson Divide region near the Town of Paonia. The CORE Act also 
formally establishes the boundaries and management protocols of the Curecanti National 
Recreation Area (NRA). It also works to increase public access for fishing in Curecanti NRA, 
which is a major economic driver in this region. 
 
Thompson Divide Withdrawal and Protection Act 
The Thompson Divide portion of the CORE Act permanently withdraws around 200,000 acres in 
the Gunnison, Garfield and Pitkin counties from future oil and gas development while preserving 
existing private property rights for leaseholders and landowners. This portion of the legislation 
includes significant fluid mineral withdrawal near Mount Lamborn, Kebler Pass, Ragged 



 
Mountains, and McClure Pass (see attached map). Protecting these iconic landscapes of our 
watershed will make meaningful steps to preserve our clean air and water, sustain wild public 
lands, and support our burgeoning recreation economy. 
 
According to the Outdoor Industry Association, the outdoor recreation industry generates $28 
billion in consumer spending, is responsible for 229,000 direct jobs, and generates $2 billion in 
state and local taxes in the State of Colorado. However, increased oil & gas activity has the 
potential to negatively impact outdoor recreation opportunities near the Town of Paonia. Each 
year tourists from across the state and country flock to the Town of Paonia to visit the robust 
natural resources of our public lands, including the largest living organism in Colorado, the 
Kebler Pass Aspen Grove, and the nation’s largest kokanee salmon fishery which is anchored 
by Blue Mesa Reservoir. Many of these lands are also prime hunting locations. According to a 
2008 report from CPW, hunting and fishing in Delta and Gunnison Counties had a total 
economic impact of $80 million. The CORE Act will provide protections that match our 
communities values, support our local economy, and continue to be a treasure for locals and 
visitors alike well into the future. 
 
Importantly, the Thompson Divide legislation also creates a program to address the pressing 
issue of coal mine methane emissions in the North Fork Valley. The North Fork Valley is 
currently home to the highest emissions of methane in Colorado. Methane is 28 to 36 times as 
potent as carbon dioxide for trapping heat over 100 years, according to the Environmental 
Protection Agency. The CORE Act will empower the Department of Interior (DOI) to conduct an 
inventory of all significant emissions of methane in the North Fork Valley, including methane 
emissions from active, inactive, and abandoned coal mines. This bill also empowers the DOI to 
create a program to lease, utilize, and monetize this methane that is otherwise venting into the 
atmosphere, helping to address these local contributions to climate change and support our 
local economy. 
 
Curecanti National Recreation Area Boundary Establishment Act 
Another important piece of the CORE Act to the Town of Paonia is the Curecanti National 
Recreation Area (NRA) Boundary Establishment Act, which formally establishes the boundary 
for the Curecanti NRA. Although created in 1965, the boundary has never been designated by 
Congress, limiting the ability of the National Park Service to effectively manage the area. The 
bill improves coordination among land management agencies and ensures the Bureau of 
Reclamation upholds its commitment to expand public fishing access in the Gunnison Basin. 
The CORE Act will ensure proper management of Curecanti NRA that will enable locals and 
tourists alike to enjoy the natural resources of the lands surrounding our community.  
 
The CORE Act is gaining momentum in Colorado and Washington DC. On April 2, the CORE 
Act had its first official hearing with the House Natural Resources Committee. The CORE Act 
has gained broad support among other local stakeholders, including the counties of Eagle, 
Summit, San Juan, Ouray, San Miguel, Gunnison, and Pitkin, the city of Glenwood Springs, and 



 
the towns of Carbondale, Ridgway, Crested Butte, Ophir, Telluride, and Basalt. In addition, the 
CORE Act is widely supported by Colorado’s outdoor recreation industry, including the Outdoor 
Industry Association, Vail Resorts, North Face, Patagonia, and Icelantic Skis.  
 
However, Senator Gardner and Representative Tipton have to officially weigh-in on the 
proposed legislation. The Western Slope Conservation Center, on behalf of our 600+ members, 
respectfully ask the Town of Paonia to send a letter to Senators Bennet and Gardner and 
Representatives Tipton and Neguse expressing the town’s support for the CORE Act in order to 
protect our public lands and our communities’ quality of life, and support our sustainable outdoor 
recreation-driven economies. 
 
Thank you for taking the time to consider our request. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
Patrick Dooling 
Executive Director 
Western Slope Conservation Center 
director@theconservationcenter.org 
970-527-5307 x 201 
 
 
 
 
 



T 7S
R 90W

T 51N
R 7W

T 11S
R 90W

T 15S
R 93W T 15S

R 88W

T 12S
R 91W

T 15S
R 86W

T 8S
R 85W

T 50N
R 3W

T 13S
R 84W

T 14S
R 85W

T 14S
R 94W

T 9S
R 94W

T 14S
R 84W

T 8S R
89W

T 51N
R 1W

T 7S
R 86W

T 12S
R 85W

T 8S R
86W

T 8S
R 91W T 8S

R 90W

T 7S
R 92W

T 6S
R 87W

T 9S R
91W

T 15S
R 84W

T 10S
R 93W

T 11S
R 88W

T 51N
R 2W

T 8S
R 88W

T 51N
R 1E

T 10S
R 88W

T 6S
R 88W

T 7S
R 94W

T 9S
R 90W

T 6S R
83W

T 13S R
94W

T 50N
R 8W

T 11S
R 92W

T 50N
R 5W

T 12S
R 87W

T 15S
R 87W

T 15S R
92W

T 11S
R 85W

T 14S
R 89W

T 50N
R 9W T 50N

R 1E

T 14S
R 93W

T 6S
R 89W

T 9S
R 85W

T 7S R
93W

T 50N
R 4W

T 11S
R 94W

T 10S
R 91W

T 6S R
84W

T 9S R
88W

T 12S
R 84W

T 11S
R 87W

T 50N
R 6W

T 12S
R 86W

T 15S
R 94W

T 6S
R 85W

T 13S
R 86W

T 7S
R 87W

T 15S R
83W

T 51N
R 3W

T 13S
R 89W

T 14S
R 90W

T 50N
R 2W

T 6S
R 92W

T 51N
R 5W

T 15S
R 85W

T 6S
R 90W

T 7S
R 91W

T 10S
R 94W

T 14S
R 88W

T 8S
R 84W

T 51N
R 6W

T 7S
R 85W

T 15S
R 89W

T 12S
R 92W

T 9S
R 87W

T 6S
R 94W

T 51N
R 8W

T 13S
R 85W

T 50N
R 2E

T 51N
R 4W

T 6S
R 86W

T 8S
R 92W

T 51N
R 2E

T 12S
R 94W

T 11S
R 91W

T 12S
R 89W

T 10S
R 90W

T 8S
R 93W

T 51N
R 9W

T 9S
R 86W

T 7S
R 84W

T 7S
R 88W

T 13S
R 93W

T 6S
R 91W

T 14S
R 86W

T 14S
R 87W

T 11S
R 89W

T 11S
R 93W

T 10S
R 92W

T 7S
R 89W

T 10S
R 85W

T 9S
R 84W

T 10S
R 86W

T 13S
R 87W

T 9S
R 89W

T 6S
R 93W

T 8S
R 94W

T 12S
R 93W

T 15S
R 90W

T 12S
R 88W

T 10S
R 87W

T 10S
R 89W

T 11S
R 86W

T 14S
R 83W

T 51N
R 5W

T 50N
R 7W

T 14S
R 91W

T 13S
R 88W

T 10S
R 84W

T 9S
R 92W

T 9S
R 93W

T 8S
R 87W

T 50N
R 1W

T 50N
R 5W

T 12S
R 90W

T 13S R
90W

T 13S
R 91W

T 13S
R 92W

T 14S
R 92W

T 15S
R 91W

T 11S
R 84W

T 7S
R 83W

06

06

36

01

06

36

31

06

36

01

36 36

06

01

36

01

01

06

06

36

36

31

31

06

06

06

01

01

36

36

31

36

36

36

31

01

31

36

01

06

01

31

31

36

36

31
06

06
06

06

06

31
01

36

36 31

31

06

36

31

36

06

36

06

31

06

36

06

06

36

06

31

01

01

36

31

06

01

06

31

01

06

06

31

06

31

36

36

01

31

31

31

01

01

36

36

36

36

31

31

36

36

3606

31

06 31

36 36

0101

31

31

31

31

31

01

06
06 36

01

01

06

36

01

06

06

31
31

31

01

01

36
3636 36

36

36

01

36

31

06

31

31

06

36

31

36

01

06

31

31

3636

36

06

01

36

01

36

06

01

31

36

06

31

06

36

01

06

31

31

01

36

01

36

36

06

31

31

31

36

31

36

06

36

36

06

06

01

06

01
06

01

06
06

31

36

36

36

01

01

06

01

31

31

06

01

31

36

36

06

01

06

36

31

01

36

01
31

01

06

36

36

01

01

06

31

36

01

36
36

06

01

36

36

31

06

06

31

06

31

01

31

31

36

06

36

01

36

01

31

06

31

01

36

01

01

01

31

31

01

31

06

36

36

36

01

06

06 06

36

01

36

31

01

36

01

01

06

31

31

06

36

31

31

36

06

31

01

01
06

06

36

31

01

06

06

31

06

31

01

36

31

01

3136

06

36

06

01

01

01

36

36

36

01

01

31

01

3131

31

36

31

31

31
31

31

31

06

01

01

06

01

31

01
01

01

01

31

01

36

06

36

31

01

36

06

01

36

01

36

36
01

31

01

31

06

36

31

36

06
3631

31

06

06

01

31

06

36

01

06

36

01

36

01

31

06 3131

01

06

06

36

36

06

01

31 36
31

36

31 36

31 36

31 36
31

363631

31 36

31 36

31

De
lta

 C
ou

nty
Gu

nn
iso

n C
ou

nty

Delta
Co

un
ty

Mesa
Co

un
ty

Delta County
Montrose County

Ea
gle

 C
ou

nty
Ga

rfi
eld

 C
ou

nty

Eagle County
Pitkin County

Garfield County
Mesa County Garfield County

Pitkin County

Gu
nn

iso
n C

ou
nty

Mo
ntr

os
e C

ou
nty

Gunnison County

Pitkin County

§̈¦70

Aspen

Basalt

Carbondale

Crawford

Crested
Butte

Glenwood
Springs

Hotchkiss

Marble

Mt.
Crested
Butte

Paonia

Snowmass
Village

East R iv er

Taylor River

North Smith F ork Gunnison R iver

C o lorad
o R

ive

r

East Fork South Fork
Crys

talRiver

Fryingpan River

Crystal Riv er

North Fork Gunnison River

North F ork Crystal R iver

S outh Fo rk Crystal River

Roaring Fork River

Gunnison R iver

S late River

Fossil
Ridge

Wilderness

West Elk
Wilderness

Raggeds
Wilderness

Collegiate
Peaks

Wilderness

Maroon
Bells-Snowmass

Wilderness

Hunter-Fryingpan
Wilderness

UV82

UV133

UV135

UV92

UV82

UV347

£¤6

Greater Thompson Divide Area Map
September 22, 2016 

This map prepared at the request of Senator Michael Bennet 

Wyoming

Ut
ah

Denver

§̈¦25

§̈¦76

§̈¦70

Map Extent

ALAMOSA

ARAPAHOE

ARCHULETA
BACA

BENT

BOULDER

CHAFFEE
CHEYENNE

CLEAR
CREEK

CONEJOS
COSTILLA

CROWLEY

CUSTER

DELTA

DOLORES

DOUGLAS

EAGLE

EL PASO

ELBERT

FREMONT

GARFIELD

GRAND

GUNNISON

HINSDALE

HUERFANO

JACKSON

KIOWA

KIT
CARSON

LA PLATA

LAKE

LARIMER

LAS
ANIMAS

LINCOLN

LOGAN

MESA

MINERAL

MOFFAT

MONTEZUMA

MONTROSE

MORGAN

OTERO

OURAY

PARK

PHILLIPS

PITKIN

PROWERS

PUEBLO

RIO
BLANCO

RIO
GRANDE

ROUTT

SAGUACHE

SAN
JUAN

SAN
MIGUEL

SEDGWICK

TELLER

WASHINGTON

WELD

YUMA

This map was produced by the BLM Colorado State Office, Sep. 22, 2016.
Document Path: T:\CO\GIS\giswork\coso\projects\legislative_maps\2016\Thompson_Divide\mxds\Greater_Thompson_Divide_Area_Map.mxd

NO WARRANTY IS MADE BY THE BUREAU OF LAND
MANAGEMENT FOR USE OF THE DATA FOR PURPOSES
NOT INTENDED BY BLM.

²
Thompson Divide Withdrawal and
Protection Area
Wolf Creek Storage Agreement
County Boundaries
Streams & Rivers

Interstates
U.S. Highway
State Highway
County & Main Roads

Bureau of Land Management
Bureau of Reclamation
National Park Service
Other Federal
State
State, County, City; Areas
US Forest Service
USFS Wilderness Area

0 10 205 Miles
1:130,000

This map is intended to be plotted at 34 x 44 in. 



149

G
u n

n i
s o

n  
C o

u n
t y

S a
g u

a c
h e

 C
o u

n t
y

50

92

92

50

50

Crystal
                       Reservoir

Morrow Point Reservoir

Blue Mesa
Reservoir

Gun n ison River

Lake Fork

C ebolla
Cre ek

Gunniso n

Gunnison River

River

B u r e a u  
         o f  
              L a n d
                         M a n a g e m e n t

G u n n i s o n  N a t i o n a l  F o r e s tBlack Canyon 
       of the 
       Gunnison
         National
               Park

To Montrose

To Gunnison

M
o n

t r
o s

e  
C o

u n
t y

G
u n

n i
s o

n  
C o

u n
t y

48N 3W48N 4W

49N 6W

48N 2W

47N 3W47N 4W

48N 6W

47N 6W

47N 2W

49N 3W 49N 2W
49N 4W

48N 7W

49N 5W

46N 6W

47N 7W

48N 5W

47N 5W

49N 7W

46N 7W
46N 2W46N 4W46N 5W

48N 1W

49N 1W

47N 1W

50N 2W50N 4W 50N 3W50N 5W

46N 1W

50N 6W

50N 7W

49N 5 1/2W

48N 1 1/2W

47N 1 1/2W

50N 5 1/2W

CURECANTI NATIONAL RECREATION AREA
PROPOSED BOUNDARY

National Park Service
U.S. Department of the Interior

34

191

163

350
550

24

85

64

287

10

85

191

82

71

83

522

159

71

14
789

70

25

70 36

191

50

160160

285

40

285

550

40

80

24

40

50

24
550

24

25

Denver

Cheyenne

Pueblo
Montrose

Grand 
Junction

Fort Collins

Gunnison

ColoradoUtah

Curecanti National
Recreation Area

Curecanti National Recreation Area Proposed Boundary
Lands withdrawn or acquired for Bureau of Reclamation projects
National Park Service
Bureau of Land Management proposed transfer to National Park Service
U.S. Forest Service proposed transfer to National Park Service
U.S. Forest Service to remain U.S. Forest Service
Colorado Division of Parks and Wildlife proposed National Park Service acquisition
Potential exchange lands
Proposed for transfer to Bureau of Land Management, subject to revocation of

Bureau of Land Management
U.S. Forest Service
Colorado State Wildlife Area
U.S. Highway
State Highway
Township Line
County Line
Lake
River

Private lands are indicated by white areas of the map
Bureau of Reclamation withdrawal

OFFICE: Lands Resources Program Center
REGION: Intermountain Region
PARK: CURE
TOTAL PROPOSED ACREAGE: +50,300
MAP NUMBER: 616/100,485C
DATE: AUGUST 11, 2016

UTM Zone 13 North, NAD83

1:240,000
2.5 0 2.5 5

Miles



Senator Michael Bennet  

Senator Cory Gardner  

Representative Joe Neguse  

Representative Scott Tipton 

 

Dear Members of the Colorado Congressional Delegation,  

 

We are writing to express our strong support for the Colorado Outdoor Recreation and Economy Act 

(CORE Act). We appreciate the leadership of the Colorado delegation to protect public lands in Colorado, 

and in particular the leadership of Senator Michael Bennet and Representative Joe Neguse for 

introducing this legislation. Our public lands support our communities’ quality of life and support our 

sustainable outdoor recreation-driven economies. Of particular benefit to the Town of Paonia are 

Thompson Divide Withdrawal and Protection Act and Curecanti National Recreation Area Boundary 

Establishment Act within the CORE Act. 

 

Thompson Divide - In particular, we appreciate that the CORE Act carries forward protections that 

balance conservation and recreation that we have long supported in the Thompson Divide Withdrawal 

and Protection Act, which was introduced last Congress. The Thompson Divide Withdrawal and 

Protection Act has enjoyed consistent and broad support from local governments and diverse 

stakeholders for years. The bill has enjoyed support from Gunnison and Pitkin Counties, eight local 

municipalities, and a wide array of local businesses and organizations.  Individual supporters come from 

all walks of life and all political persuasions, and include ranchers, sportsmen, private landowners, 

recreation groups, small business owners, skiing companies, and many more.  A version of the 

Thompson Divide Withdrawal and Protection Act was most recently introduced by Sen. Bennet in March 

of 2017 (S. 481). 

 

Curecanti National Recreation Area - We appreciate that the CORE Act formally establishes the 

boundaries and management of the Curecanti National Recreation Area. Curecanti National Recreation 

Area deserves official recognition within the National Park System, managed by its dedicated staff, and 

celebrated for the significant benefit it brings to the local economy. The CORE Act will ensure proper 

management of Curecanti NRA that will enable locals and tourists alike to enjoy the natural resources of 

the lands surrounding our community.  

 

The four elements of the CORE Act are all reflective of and accountable to the needs and interests of 

diverse stakeholders, with carefully drawn boundaries and thoughtful designations. We are appreciative 

that these proposed designations were locally developed to address existing and future recreation, 

wildlife habitat, wildfire management, agricultural and water supply needs.  

 

Millions of people visit the central mountains and western slope of Colorado each year, and our federal 

public lands contribute immeasurably to our economy and quality of life. But we must have the vision to 

protect what is wilderness, create ongoing opportunities for sustainable recreation, and conserve 

wildlife habitat. We believe that the CORE Act strikes that balance.  



 

We hope that Colorado’s congressional delegation will prioritize passage of the CORE Act in the 116th 

Congress.  

 

Sincerely, 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 2, 2019 
 

 

Annexation of County road – Stahl Road and County road section of 

Grand Avenue to the bridge.  

Summary:   

Staff requests Board of Trustees permit the Town Administrator, on their behalf, to request the 

Board of County Commissioners (BOCC) approve the annexation of Stahl Road and Grand 

Avenue from Fourth Street to the south side of the bridge.  

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 2, 2019 
 

 

Sewer Tap Purchase - Stahl 

Summary:   

Arvin Stahl requests Board approval to connect to Town sewer. The pre-annexation agreement 

and sewer tap deposit have been submitted. The property is included in the Town/Delta 

County planning area A. Staff recommends the sale of the sewer tap at the in-Town rate of 

$5,000 – noting the property is within the planning area and may be subject to annexation in 

the near future.  

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 











AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 3, 2019 
 

 

Minor Subdivision– BOCC Recommendation 

Summary:   

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 





















AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 4, 2019 
 

 

Minor Subdivision Approval – Rio Grande 

Summary:   

FYI – Water and Sewer Tap Applications included for informational purposes only. In-Town 

tap sales do not require Board approval. 

 

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 

















AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 2, 2019 
 

 

Town Clerk Public Records Policy - Discussion 

Summary:   

The Colorado Revised Statutes provide the custodian of the record (Clerk) to add additional 

policies and define the procedure for public records requests as defined in the Colorado Open 

Record Act. Attached are the policies for review.  

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



1 

 

Public Records Policy – Established 11-15-2018 

 

Town of Paonia - Public Records Policy 

 

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of the Town of Paonia that all public records shall be 

open for inspection by any person at reasonable times, except as provided by the Public 

Records Act or by other laws. This policy is intended to provide a guideline for employees 

handling public records requests and will be deemed modified by additional or new language 

added to the Colorado Public Records Act C.R.S. 24-72-201 et seq. 

 

Though "all public records are to be open for inspection by any person at reasonable times," 

procedures for such disclosure can be subject to rules and regulations made by the official 

custodian or the custodian.  

 

Now henceforth it shall be the policy of the Paonia Town Clerk as follows: 

 

These rules and regulations are authorized, if they are reasonably necessary for the 

protection of such records and for the prevention of unnecessary interference with the 

regular discharge of the duties of the custodian or his/her office/department. Such rules and 

regulations cannot change the Act; for example, such rules and regulations cannot limit who 

is entitled to records or limit what records are open for inspection. This Policy is intended as 

a general guideline to assist employees in handling public records requests. However, 

depending upon the circumstances of a request, the Town reserves the right to allow a 

custodian to establish specific rules and regulations necessary for the protection of such 

records and for the prevention of unnecessary interference with the regular discharge of the 

duties of the custodian or his/her office/department. This Policy is subject to interpretation 

by the Town Attorney’s Office and exceptions may be made in individual cases at the 

discretion of the Town Attorney’s Office. 

 

A. Definitions 

 

The definitions found in 24-72-202. C.R.S., as amended from time to time, shall apply unless 

the context clearly requires a different meaning. Two definitions of particular importance are 

listed below: 

 

1) Public Records: All writings made, maintained, or kept by . . . any political 

subdivision... for use in the exercise of functions required or authorized by law... or 

involving receipt or expenditure of public funds (C.R.S. 24-72-202(6)). Criminal 

justice records are not included by the provisions of Part 2, but rather are covered by 

Part 3 of the Act. 

 

2) Writings: All books, papers, maps, photographs, cards, tapes, recordings, or other 

documentary materials, regardless of physical form or characteristics. Writing 

includes digitally stored data, including without limitation e-mail messages, but does 

not include computer software (C.R.S. 24-72-202(7)). 

 

B. Procedure 

 

1) The Town has determined that the use of an official Request Form to be used by 



2 

 

Public Records Policy – Established 11-15-2018 

 

citizens is necessary for the efficient handling of such public records requests. The 

Public Records Request Form  (Attachment A) should be given to any individual who 

makes a request that is not on the form, or the individual should be directed to 

www.townofpaonia.com  or to the Paonia Town Clerk to receive a Public Records Request 

Form. The citizen should be told that Town Policy requires that requests be made on this form 

and the employee should make every effort to ensure that the citizen is given enough 

information so that they can access the form without delay. Once a request is received on the 

official Town Public Records Request Form, a copy should be transmitted to the Town 

Attorney’s Office immediately. The Town has a limited amount of time within which to 

respond to Public Records requests and employees receiving such requests should be familiar 

with these statutory deadlines. See Time for Accessing Public Records in this Policy for more 

information. 

 

2) The Town Clerk is the official custodian of all records centrally maintained by the Town. 

Department Heads are the official custodians of all records maintained within their departments. 

The Town Clerk is the official custodian of e-mails. It is the responsibility of each Department 

Head to become familiar with and to educate his/her affected employees about the standards and 

requirements of this policy. 

 

Elected Officials may develop their own policies and procedure regarding public 

records in their custody; however, to the extent that the Town has custody of any 

public records of an Elected Official the Town shall, in consultation with the Elected 

Official, meet any requirement of the Open Records Act as it may apply to documents 

in the Town’s possession. 

 

If the public records requested are not in the custody or control of the person to whom 

application is made, such person shall “forthwith” notify the applicant of this fact, in 

writing if requested by the applicant. In such notification, the person shall state in 

detail to the best of the person’s knowledge and belief the reason for the absence of 

the records from the person’s custody or control, the location of the records, and what 

person then has custody or control of the records. C.R.S. 24-72-203(2)(a) 

 

C. Fees 

 

1) Request(s) for records which fit the following criteria may, in the judgment of the 

official custodian, be provided free of charge: 

 

a) Documents which do not exceed ten pages, and which are retrievable within a 

one-hour period of the request(s). 

 

b) Agenda materials which have been prepared in advance and which are in support 

of items scheduled for consideration by the Board of Trustees at a future date, 

unless the request(s) exceeds twenty-five pages of material. 

 

c) Record(s) which are normally produced for public information, such as the current 

year budget document, brochures on Town services, or procedures, etc. 

 

2) In all cases where a person has the right to inspect any public record, s/he may request 



3 

 

Public Records Policy – Established 11-15-2018 

 

Electronic copies, printouts or photographs of such record. 

a) The fee shall be established by the Board of Trustees within their official fees 

schedule which may be amended from time-to-time.  Fees shall be within the 

criteria set forth by the State of Colorado. Actual costs shall include staff time. 

Any fees charged in this policy shall include the cost of redacting documents to 

excise privileged material and legal review within the limits provided by law. 

Fees may be waived or reduced with prior approval of the Board of Trustees. 

b) Each department may also charge a reasonable hourly fee for the manipulation of 

data in order to generate a record in a form not used by Town, if the Town elects 

to provide information in this manner. 

c) An initial deposit of up to 50% of the reasonable estimated costs may be 

required in advance of fulfillment of the request. 

d) All payments for copies and staff time etc. must be received in advance of 

releasing the requested records. 

e) Departments may charge for time spent responding to large requests, and/or 

multiple requests (which shall include, but not be limited to requests on multiple 

request forms or on multiple pages), including without limitation, compiling 

information, request(s) that require the searching of voluminous files for specific 

information, manipulation of data (including manipulating data in order to 

generate a record in a form not used by the Town, although such manipulation is 

not required by CORA), or redacting documents to excise confidential 

information. The charge shall be established by the Board of Trustees within 

their official fees schedule which may be amended from time-to-time.  Fees shall 

be within the criteria set forth by the State of Colorado. All time spent on such 

tasks shall be charged to the requesting party. 

 

D. Time for accessing Public Records 

 

1) Time for inspection of records – Three Working Days 

 

If the requested records are in active use or are in storage and, therefore, are not 

available right away, this fact shall be communicated to the applicant "forthwith" in 

writing if requested. The custodian shall set a date and hour within three working 

days when the records will be available for inspection. 

 

2) Extension of time to 10 working days 

 

The period of providing requested documents for review may be extended up to ten 

working days if the custodian determines that one of the following conditions 

exists, and, states such condition in writing to the requestor within the first three 

days that the request was received: 

 

a) A broadly stated request is made that encompasses all or substantially all of a 

large category of records and the request is without sufficient specificity to allow 

the custodian reasonably to prepare or gather the records within the three-day 

period; or 

b) A broadly stated request is made that encompasses all or substantially all of a 



4 

 

Public Records Policy – Established 11-15-2018 

 

large category of records and the agency is unable to prepare or gather the records 

within the three-day period because: 

 

i) The agency needs to devote all or substantially all of its resources to meeting 

an impending deadline or period of peak demand that is either unique or 

not predicted to recur more frequently than once a month; or 

ii) A request involves such a large volume of records that the custodian cannot 

reasonably prepare or gather records within the three-day period without 

substantially interfering with the custodian’s obligation to perform his or 

her other public service responsibilities. 

 

c) In no event can extenuating circumstances apply to a request that relates to a 

single, specifically identified document. 

d) If the request is too broad, speculative or voluminous to prepare in ten days the 

Town may request relief from the court, including attorney’s fees, as provided 

by law. 

 

3) When Time Period for Response Begins: 

 

The time period for response does not begin to run until the Town receives the 

request on the Town’s official Public Records Request form. If the form is sent by: 

 

a) E-mail, it is deemed received when it is viewed by the recipient. 

b) U.S. Mail, it is deemed received when its seal is broken. 

c) Fax, it is deemed received on the following business day. 

d) In-person, it is deemed received on the following business day. 

 

E. Reviewing Records 

 

The custodian of the records may set the location where the records may be viewed by the 

requestor. In no event may a requester remove documents or add documents to those 

provided for review. The requestor shall not bring and shall not use photocopiers, fax 

machines or any other copy, scanning or reproduction device to copy or photograph Town 

records. Upon completion of the review, the requestor must mark the pages s/he wishes to 

have copied with adhesive tabs. Copies will be made at a later time, depending upon 

volume. The requestor will be notified when the copies are available for pick-up. 

 

If the custodian has the capability to make reproduction she/he shall do so at the rates set in 

the section entitled FEES, above. If the custodian does not have the facilities for making 

copies, printouts, or photographs of the records, the custodian may make arrangements for 

the services to be rendered at another facility. If other facilities are necessary, the person 

desiring a copy, printout or photograph of the record shall pay the cost of providing them. In 

no event shall the records leave the custody and possession of a Town employee assigned by 

the custodian of the record during this process (other than providing the items to the third-

party facility for reproduction.) The Town is under no obligation to allow citizens access to 

Town computers nor is the Town obligated to provide records in electronic format. 

 



5 

 

Public Records Policy – Established 11-15-2018 

 

 

 
 

F. Denial of Inspection of Records 

 

1) Denial of inspection must be specific and can only be based on reasons provided in 

the Public Records Act. The Act provides that documents may be withheld from 

disclosure: 

 

a) If inspection would be contrary to any state statute. 

b) If inspection would be contrary to federal statute or regulation. 

c) If inspection is prohibited by a rule of the Supreme Court or by order of any court. 

 
 

2) Denial is permitted in the following situations, if disclosure would be contrary to the 

public interest; but if such records are given to one news agency, they shall be 

available to all news agencies: 

 

a) Any records of the investigation conducted by any sheriff, prosecuting attorney, 

or police department, any records of intelligence information or security 

procedures of any sheriff, prosecuting attorney, or police department or any 

investigatory files compiled for any other law enforcement purpose. 

b) Test related data listed in C.R.S. 24-72-204(2)(a)(II). 

c) Details of bona fide research projects of state institutions. 

d) Contents of real estate appraisals relative to acquisition (not sale) of property for 

public use until title passes to the Town. 

e) Market analysis data generated by the Department of Transportation’s bid analysis 

and management system for the confidential use of the department for awarding 

contracts or for the purchase of goods or services and any documents prepared for 

the bid analysis and management system; 

f) Records and information relating to the identification of persons filed with, 

maintained by or prepared by the Department of Revenue pursuant to 42-2-121 

C.R.S. 

 

3) Inspection of the following shall be denied, unless otherwise provided by law or 

unless requested by the person in interest: 

 

a) Medical, mental health, sociological, or scholastic achievement data on 

individuals. 

b) Personnel files, except for application and performance ratings. 

c) Letters of reference (which are not disclosable to the person in interest, if they 

concern employment, licensing, or issuance of permits). 

d) Trade secrets, privileged information, and confidential commercial, geological, or 

geophysical data furnished by or obtained from any person. 

e) Certain material contributed to libraries or museums. 

f) Addresses and phone numbers of school children. 

g) Library records identifying users, as prohibited by C.R.S. 24-90-119. 

h) Home addresses, telephone numbers and financial information of Town employees. 



6 

 

Public Records Policy – Established 11-15-2018 

 

i) In addition to the above described documents, the Act provides specific and 

detailed circumstances for the denial of, or limited release, of records related to: 

 

i) sexual harassment complaints and investigations, and, 

ii) applicants for an executive position at the Town. 

iii) Records protected by common law privileges such as the governmental 

privilege, the deliberative process privilege, work product privilege, or 

attorney –client privilege. If a record is withheld pursuant to the 

deliberative process privilege, the custodian shall provide the applicant 

with a sworn statement specifically describing each document withheld, 

explaining why each document is privileged and why disclosure would 

cause substantial injury to the public interest. 

iv) The constitutional right of privacy may, in very limited circumstances, be a 

basis for resisting disclosure, particularly for the person in interest. 

 

4) Denial on Basis That Release Would do Substantial Injury to the Public Interest 

 

a) The official custodian may petition the District Court for an order restricting 

disclosure of records otherwise subject to inspection, if disclosure would do 

substantial injury to the public interest (C.R.S. 24-72-204(6)). 

b) If inspection is denied, the applicant may request a written statement of the 

grounds of denial and that statement shall cite the law or regulation which is the 

basis for denial (C.R.S. 24-72-204(4)). 

c) Even records which must be kept confidential are subject to subpoena, discovery 

requests, etc., but such requests can be resisted under the balancing tests set up in 

Martinelli vs. District Court 612 P.2d 1083 (1980). 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 5, 2019 
 

 

Finance & Personnel 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 5, 2019 
 

 

Public Works/Utilities/Facilities 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 5, 2019 
 

 

Governmental Affairs/Public Safety 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 5, 2019 
 

 

Space to Create 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 5, 2019 
 

 

Tree Board 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 



AGENDA SUMMARY FORM  

April 5, 2019 
 

 

Adjournment 

Summary:   

 

Notes: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Possible Motions: 

 

Motion by: ___________________ 2
nd

: ___________________vote: _________ 

 

Vote: Trustee Bachran: Trustee Bear: Trustee Bookout: 

Trustee Budinger: Trustee Hart: Trustee Knutson: Mayor Stewart: 

 

 

 


	Top
	6. ASF - Regular Minutes – March 26, 2019
	Regular Minutes – March 26, 2019.docx
	03262019 Rought Draft Minutes.docx

	7. Consent Agenda - Rio Bravo
	ASF - Consent Agenda Rio Bravo LLR.docx
	Rio Bravo LLR_Redacted.pdf

	8. Consent Agenda - River Park Event
	ASF - Consent Agenda River Festival.docx
	WSCC River Fest - Redacted.pdf
	WSCC - Park Application_Redacted.pdf

	10. ASF - Arbor Day
	ASF - Arbor Day.docx
	ArborDay2019.doc

	12. Clark Ave Parking
	ASF - Clark Avenue Parking.docx

	13. ASF - RFP – Water Engineer for the Study of Adding Raw Water Storage to Lone Cabin Reservoir - Roeber Reservoir
	ASF - RFP – Water Engineer for the Study of Adding Raw Water Storage to Lone Cabin Reservoir - Roeber Reservoir.docx

	14. ASF - RFP – Water Engineer Study Water Treatment Capacity and Raw Water Availability
	ASF - RFP – Water Engineer Study Water Treatment Capacity and Raw Water Availability.docx

	15. ASF - RPF – Mapping of Water and Sewer System in format that can be added to County GIS
	ASF - RPF – Mapping of Water and Sewer System in format that can be added to County GIS.docx

	20. ASF - Tree Board Appointment
	ASF - Tree Board Appointment.docx
	Wain Tree Board_Redacted.pdf
	Valentine Tree Board_Redacted.pdf

	21. Town Administrator Review - Goals and Objectives
	ASF - TA Review - Goals and Objectives.docx

	22. Ordinance 2019-TBD Single Use Plastic Bag Ban
	ASF - Ordinance 2019- Single Use Bag Ban.docx
	Ordinance 2019-TBD Single Use Bag ban.docx

	23. ASF - Lifting of Water State of Emergency
	ASF - Lifting of Water State of Emergency.docx
	Resolution 2019-08 Emergency Declaration.docx

	24. ASF - Friends of the Paonia Skatepark
	ASF - SkatePark.docx

	25. ASF - WSCC LOS
	ASF - WSCC Letter of Support.docx
	WSCC - LOS Request.pdf
	CORE Act Summary (Extended).pdf
	CORE Act Town of Paonia LOS_WSCC.pdf
	CORE Act Relevant Maps.pdf
	CORE Act Town of Paonia support template.docx

	26. ASF - County Road Annex
	ASF - County Road Annexation.docx

	27. ASF - Stahl Sewer Tap Purchase
	ASF - Stahl Sewer Tap Purchase.docx
	Stahl Sewer Tap_Redacted.pdf

	28. ASF - Minor Subdivision Huntley
	ASF - Minor Subdivision– BOCC Recommendation.docx
	HUNTLEY - MINOR SUBDIVISION STAHL RD.pdf

	29. ASF - Minor Subdivision Rio Grande
	ASF - Subdivision Rio Grande.docx
	Barger-Rio Grande Minor Subdivision_Redacted.pdf
	Barger Minor Subdivision - Rig Grande.pdf

	30. ASF - CORA Policy
	ASF - CORA Policy.docx
	Public Records Policy.pdf

	Bottom

